
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, October 23, 2012                                                                         City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

**Note** A Special Meeting is scheduled from 6:00 to 7:00 p.m.  
 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  September 25, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  October 11 special meeting for site visit. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  October 11 meeting. 
• Budget Priorities Advisory Committee Liaison Joseph Cimaomo, Jr.: Oct. 3 & 17 meetings. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  October 17 meeting. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  September 27 meeting.  
Future Meetings:  Planning: Oct. 4 & Oct. 18 meetings canceled; next meeting Nov. 1. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Testimony Regarding Proposed Fiscal Year 2013 Budget and Revenue Sources 

(Hendrickson)  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
2. Branding Exercise (Slate) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  October 23, 2012   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  SEPTEMBER 25, 2012 CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES   
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the September 25, 2012 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

 
 
 

1 of 53



City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, September 25, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
September 25, 2012, at 7:06 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Marlla Mhoon. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin 
Klason, Covington Police Chief; Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Sara Springer, 
City Attorney; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive 
Assistant. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Lanza moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Mhoon who was on vacation.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Harto invited the Spartans Patrol from the Webelos Den of Pack 506 Cub Scouts to open 
the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded 
to approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 
 Kent School District Superintendent Dr. Edward Lee Vargas accepted a proclamation 

recognizing the week of October 21-27, 2012 as “Safe Schools Week” in Covington. 
 

 Community Development Director Richard Hart accepted a proclamation recognizing the 
week of October 7-13, 2012 as “Fire Prevention Week” in Covington. 
 

 Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff accepted a proclamation recognizing Saturday, 
October 27, 2012, as “Make a Difference Day” in Covington. 
 

 Planning Commission Chair Daniel Key accepted a proclamation recognizing the month 
of October 2012 as “National Community Planning Month” in Covington. 
 

2 of 53



 Personnel & Human Services Analyst Victoria Throm accepted a proclamation 
recognizing the month of October 2012 as “Domestic Violence Awareness Month” in 
Covington. 
 

Mayor Harto recognized Finance Director Rob Hendrickson for his 21 years of receiving the 
annual Professional Finance Officer Award from the Washington Financial Officers Association 
for the State of Washington. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Brandon Anderson with BranBar LLC asked Council to continue its efforts to bring the 
Northern Notch inside city limits. 
 
Robert Thorpe, President of R.W. Thorpe & Associates, Inc., suggested that there was 
confusion with the process to bring the Notch inside city limits and offered his clarification and 
his suggestion for an alternative which was to ask the county council to give Covington nine 
more months to provide the county with additional information. 
 
Personnel & Human Services Analyst Victoria Throm gave a report on the recent Mayor’s 
Day of Concern food drive. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  September 11, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #28208-28268, in the Amount of $233,781.85, Dated September 5, 

2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000730693-1000730705 and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1000730707-1000730708 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $144,553.24, Dated September 14, 2012. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Lanza seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Chair Haris Ahmad reported on the September 13 meeting. 

: 

 
Arts Commission – Chair Sandy Bisordi reported on the August 9 and September 13 meetings. 
 
Budget Priorities Advisory Committee – Member Joseph Cimaomo, Jr. reported on the August 
1, August 15, and September 19 meetings.  The September 5 meeting was canceled. 
 
Parks & Recreation Commission – No report.  The August 15 and September 19 meetings 
were canceled. 
 

3 of 53



Planning Commission – No report.  The August 2, August 16, September 6, and September 20 
meetings were canceled. 
 
Economic Development Council – No report.  The July and August meetings were canceled. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
1.  Debrief Northern Notch Advocacy Effort. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart then provided information about the County’s 
plans regarding the population and employment targets. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hart provided responses. 
 
Council concurred to let city staff make inquiries of King County staff to get input on going 
further in the process and what could be done to continue the advocacy effort. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Robert Thorpe, President of R.W. Thorpe & Associates, Inc., offered some input regarding 
previous questions that Council had regarding the Notch process and said he would send Council 
additional information. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

4 of 53



Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  October 23, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #28329-28387, in the Amount of $165,555.48, Dated October 
2, 2012; Vouchers #28388-28444, in the amount of $435,100.01, Dated October 16, 2012; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000783081-1000783089 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000783094-1000783095 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$141,448.36, Dated October 12, 2012. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment: Vouchers #28329-28387, in the Amount 
of $165,555.48, Dated October 2, 2012; Vouchers #28388-28444, in the 
amount of $435,100.01, Dated October 16, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1000783081-1000783089 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000783094-1000783095 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the 
Amount of $141,448.36, Dated October 12, 2012.  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

5 of 53



6 of 53



7 of 53



8 of 53



9 of 53



10 of 53



11 of 53



12 of 53



13 of 53



14 of 53



15 of 53



16 of 53



17 of 53



18 of 53



19 of 53



20 of 53



21 of 53



22 of 53



23 of 53



 Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting                     
 Date: October 23, 2012   
 

SUBJECT:  PRELIMINARY PUBLIC HEARING TO RECEIVE TESTIMONY FROM THE 
PUBLIC AND PRESENTATION FROM STAFF REGARDING PROPOSED 
FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGET AND REVENUE SOURCES.  

ATTACHMENT(S):  
1. Description of 2013 Revenue Sources. 
2. PowerPoint Presentation. 
3. Real Estate Excise Tax Forecast. 
4. 2012-2018 Base Revenue and Expenditure Forecast – All Funds.  
5. Property Tax Worksheet. 

 
COUNCILMEMBERS AND STAFF: PLEASE REMEMBER TO BRING YOUR 
PRELIMINARY 2013 BUDGET WORKBOOK BINDERS TO THE MEETING. 

THANK YOU! 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION:   
This public hearing is required under state law (RCW 84.55.120) to consider possible increases 
in property tax revenues and to review other revenue sources that support the City’s general 
fund.  The Finance Director will review the history of Covington’s revenue collections, the 
current year’s collections, and 2013’s revenue projections.  

 
This hearing, mandated by law, should focus on the City’s revenue sources and potential 
adjustments to property tax revenues. The deadline for setting 2013 property tax levies for cities 
in King County is December 3, 2012. 

 
It is the policy of the City to follow applicable laws as they relate to the budget process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION: ____Ordinance  ____Resolution  _____Motion       X    Other 
 
 

NO COUNCIL ACTION REQUIRED AT THIS MEETING 

24 of 53



ATTACHMENT 1

25 of 53



26 of 53



27 of 53



28 of 53



29 of 53



30 of 53



ATTACHMENT 2

31 of 53



32 of 53



33 of 53



34 of 53



35 of 53



36 of 53



37 of 53



38 of 53



39 of 53



40 of 53



41 of 53



ATTACHMENT 3

42 of 53



ATTACHMENT 4

43 of 53



44 of 53



45 of 53



46 of 53



47 of 53



48 of 53



ATTACHMENT 5

49 of 53



Agenda Item 2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  October 23, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:   BRANDING EXERCISE 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. None 
 
PREPARED BY:  Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In preparation for improving and refreshing the city’s brand, a branding exercise will take place 
to allow City Council to discuss their thoughts and provide input on the process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution    _   Motion     X   None 
 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

50 of 53



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date:  October 23, 2012 
 

 
DISCUSSION OF  

FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 
 
 
 

9:00 a.m., Saturday, November 3, 2012 
 Special Meeting – Budget Workshop 

 
 

7:00 p.m., Tuesday, November 13, 2012 Regular Meeting 
 
 
 
 

(Draft Agendas Attached) 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

51 of 53



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 

 

 
 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA - BUDGET WORKSHOP 

Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Saturday, November 3, 2012 - 9:00 a.m. 

 
      

GENERAL INFORMATION: 
The workshop is an informal meeting involving discussion between and among the City Council and 
city staff regarding presentations and strategies.  Workshops may involve presentations, feedback, 
brainstorming, etc., regarding further work to be done by the staff on key policy matters. 
 

CALL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION 
1. Department 2013 Budget Presentations. (Hendrickson) 

a. Executive (Matheson/Beaufrere) 
b. Finance (Hendrickson) 
c. Community Development (Hart) 
d. Public Works (Akramoff) 
e. Parks & Recreation (Thomas) 
f. Police (Klason) 

 
2. Review Budget Strategies. (Matheson) 
 
3. Discuss Budget Presentations. (Council) 
 
ADJOURN      
                             
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 
hours in advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the 
operator to dial 253- 480-2400.  

Draft 
as of 10/17/12 
 

52 of 53

http://www.ci.covington.wa.us/�


Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, November 13, 2012                                                                     City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  November 3, 2012 City Council Special Meeting – Budget Workshop (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Gary Patrick Memorial Resolution (Council) 
2. Consider Resolutions Amending 2013 Development, Building Permit, and Administrative 

Fees (Hart) 
3. Consider 2013 Legislative Agenda (Matheson) 
4. Third Quarter Financial Report (Hendrickson) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  

Draft 
as of 10/17/12 

 

53 of 53

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	10-23-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, October 23, 2012                                                                         City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item C-1 10-23-2012 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent 1 Attachment 09.25.2012 Reg CC
	Consent Item C-2 Vouchers Approval 10-23-2012
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent 2 Attachment
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 10-23-12 Revenue Hearing Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 1 Attachments
	iTEM 2 bLUE SHEET 102312BrandingExercise
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet for Two Meetings
	11-03-12 Budget Workshop
	Council Chambers – 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington
	Saturday, November 3, 2012 - 9:00 a.m.
	CALL CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP TO ORDER
	ROLL CALL
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA


	11-13-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, November 13, 2012                                                                     City Council Chambers
	ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item C-1 10-23-2012 Minutes Approval.pdf
	Consent Agenda Item C-1




